
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

If you are reading these papers on an electronic device you have saved the Council £11.33 and 
helped reduce the Council’s carbon footprint.

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Adults and Safer City Scrutiny 
Panel
29 January 2019

Time 6.00 pm Public Meeting? YES Type of meeting Scrutiny

Venue Committee Room 3 - 3rd Floor - Civic Centre

Membership
Chair Cllr Linda Leach (Lab)
Vice-chair Cllr Simon Bennett (Con)

Labour Conservative

Cllr Rupinderjit Kaur
Cllr Welcome Koussoukama
Cllr Asha Mattu
Cllr Barbara McGarrity
Cllr Anwen Muston
Cllr Susan Roberts MBE
Cllr Zee Russell

Cllr Sohail Khan

Quorum for this meeting is three Councillors.

Information for the Public
If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the Democratic Services team:

Contact Earl Piggott Smith
Tel/Email 01902 551251 email:earl.piggott-smith@wolverhampton.gov.uk
Address Democratic Services, Civic Centre, 1st floor, St Peter’s Square,

Wolverhampton WV1 1RL

Copies of other agendas and reports are available from:

Website http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/ 
Email democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk 
Tel 01902 555046

Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports 
are not available to the public.

http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/
http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk


 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Agenda
Page 2 of 2

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Agenda
Part 1 – items open to the press and public
Item No. Title

1 Apologies 

2 Declarations of Interest 

3 Minutes of previous meetings (27.11.18) (Pages 3 - 10)
[To approve the minutes of the previous meeting as a correct record]

4 Matters arising 

5 Healthy Ageing Portfolio - Public Health (Pages 11 - 12)
Dr Ankush Mittal, Consultant in Public Health, to present briefing paper

6 Serious Violence and Exploitation Strategy 2019-2022 - Consultation (report to 
follow) 

7 Violence Against Women and Girls Strategy 2019-2022 Consultation (report to 
follow) 

8 Adults and Safer City Scrutiny - Draft Work Programme (Pages 13 - 14)
[Earl Piggott-Smith, Scrutiny Officer, to present report]



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Adults and Safer City Scrutiny 
Panel
Minutes - 27 November 2018

Attendance

Members of the Adults and Safer City Scrutiny Panel

Cllr Simon Bennett (Vice-Chair)
Cllr Sohail Khan
Cllr Linda Leach (Chair)
Cllr Anwen Muston
Cllr Susan Roberts MBE
Cllr Zee Russell

Witnesses

Ashely Bertie
Mary Jacobs

Assistant Police Crime Commissioner
Partnerships and Engagement Officer

Employees
James Barlow Senior Accounting Officer
Earl Piggott-Smith Scrutiny Officer
Alison Shannon Chief Accountant
David Watts Director of Adult Services

Part 1 – items open to the press and public
Item No. Title

1 Apologies
Apologies were received from the following:
 
Councillor Rupinderjit Kaur
Councillor Sandra Samuels
James Barlow

Apologies had been submitted previously by Cllr Sohail Khan but were not recorded. 

The panel agreed to note the apologies.

2 Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest recorded.

3 Minutes of previous meetings (25.9.18)

Page 3

Agenda Item No: 3



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

The minutes of the previous meeting were confirmed as a correct record and signed 
by the Chair.

4 Matters arising
Agenda Item 7 Overview of the Adult Education Offer and Outcomes for residents

Cllr Sohail Khan reported back from a visit to the Adult Education Service. The visit 
included a meeting with staff and students. Cllr Khan commented that the visit was 
very positive, and he had learnt a great deal and encouraged by the response from 
students about the importance work being done to improve skills and knowledge. Cllr 
Khan met with staff who outlined the current curriculum education offer for adults and 
the future development of the City Learning Quarter. Cllr Khan encouraged others to 
attend. 

5 The West Midlands Police and Crime Plan 2016-20
Ashley Bertie, Assistant Policy Crime Commissioner, APCC thanked for panel for the 
invitation to attend the panel meeting. The APCC introduced Mary Jacobs, 
Partnerships and Engagement Officer, West Midlands Police and Crime 
Commissioner.

The APCC outlined the role and responsibilities of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner (PCC) and the relationship with Chief Constable of West Midlands 
Police. The PCC responsibility covers seven local authorities’ regions. 

The APCC explained that the priorities of the PCC are detailed in the Police and 
Crime Plan 2016-2020, against which he is held to account by the public and 
representatives of the Police and Crime Panel. 

The APCC commented on the low level of re-offending across the region and 
reduction in recorded crime rate. The APCC commented that an important success 
of the work done by PCC was fewer people entering the criminal justice, as a result 
of focusing on reducing violent crime and street gangs.

The APCC commented on work done to increase confidence by the public in the 
police and also managing the challenge presented by the loss of 2000 police officers 
and delivering budget savings of £125 million. The APPC commented on the areas of 
increased demand on the police to deal with complex issues ranging from child 
sexual exploitation to female genital mutilation, which has presented a number of 
challenges. 

The APCC commented on the impact of reduced spending by other public sector 
bodies which has reduced services which in the past would have supported many of 
the groups that the service is having to care for with limited resources.

The Chair invited members of the panel to question the APPC on the performance of 
PCC. The panel queried what changes had been made in the list of priority areas 
detailed in the Police and Crime Panel, and also if any new priorities had emerged 
since it was produced. The APCC commented on the increase in reports of hate 
crime, domestic violence as new emerging issue that the police are dealing with. The 
APCC explained that the PCC is not involved in any decisions about policing 
operational matters but is working with the Chief Constable who will be held to 
account by the PCC to achieve them. The changing nature of drug misuse has had a 

Page 4



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

major impact on policing resources and the view of the PCC was that the ‘war on 
drugs’ had failed.

The APCC accepted that the police are not giving the public the right level of service 
based on the complaints about response times reported on the non-emergency 
numbers. The APPC accepted that the police service do not always get it right in 
terms of responding promptly to calls from the public, but they are working hard to 
improve the situation.

The APCC commented on issue of vehicle crime and the work being done to reduce 
the number of illegal ‘chop shops” where car parts are sold abroad  from cars stolen 
in the region. The APPC added that 600 illegal ‘chop shops’ involved in this crime 
had been closed down. 

The APCC commented on the increased numbers reported incidents of hate crime 
but added that in some situations people do not want to report the matter and would 
like someone to talk a third-party charity. The APPC added that work is being done 
with police neighbourhood teams and the Head of Hate Crime in preparation for 
when the UK leaves the European Union, if there is an increase in reported incidents. 
The panel were advised that the University of Birmingham have been commissioned 
to research the issue of hate crime.

The panel queried the lack of explicit reference in the Police and Crime Plan to the 
PCC meeting its responsibilities as detailed in the Equality Act. The APCC explained 
that the responsibilities of the Act are at the heart of the work being done by the 
PCC. The PCC wants the police force to be more representative of the population, at 
present the number of officers is well below the 34% of the population who are BME 
background. The APCC commented on the importance of improving the situation and 
that work continues with the police to create a more diverse workforce. In addition, 
the PCC wants to give women better opportunities so that they can progress at the 
same rate as male police officers.

The panel commented of the major delays in getting a response when contacting the 
police using the non-emergency telephone number and the poor service given to the 
public. The panel added that the public had struggled to speak to anyone and there 
was little confidence in the service. The APCC accepted that their problems with the 
service and reported that there had been fewer complaints received recently and that 
the performance is being monitored.

The panel queried if a decision had been made to close Wednesfield Police Station. 
The APCC commented that the PCC view is that the station should not close. 

The panel expressed concern about the reduction in special constables and PCSOs 
and the negative effect that this had on public confidence in the police and reinforced 
the view that the crime situation is getting worse.

The APCC commented on efforts to consider alternatives to prison for young people 
such as restorative justice, which is a key part of the PCC’s aim that people should 
be offered support where appropriate rather than prison to reduce the level of crime.

Page 5



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

The panel queried the policy of ‘stop and search’. The APCC commented that the 
number of cases has reduced significantly from 64,000 (2011/12) to 1200. An 
analysis of the cases showed that only 4% of the 64000 cases led to a positive 
outcome.
Following a change in policing policy to a more intelligent led approach this resulted 
in an increase of 34% increase in the number of positive outcomes, where something 
illegal had been found during the search.

The APCC commented that the PCC will investigate complaints arising from ‘stop 
and search’ and is working with the police to get a satisfactory solution to the issue 
for all concerned, when then are complaints.

The panel expressed a high level of dissatisfaction with the 101 non-emergency 
number and wanted to see progress made to improve the situation. The APCC that 
the service is driven by demand and there is acceptance that more resources are 
needed to give the public a better service to reduce lengthy waiting times. The APCC 
commented on the range of factors contributing to increased demand on the non-
emergency service.

The panel discussed progress made to recruit more police officers. The APCC 
commented on the current recruitment targets based on the budget plans for 2016-
20. The APCC added that Government had recently announced the West Midlands 
Police will have fund pension contributions, estimated at £8.8 million, which will have 
major implications for service. The APCC added that there was no advance warning 
given of this plan and difficult decisions will have to be made about the future 
recruitment of police officers if the decision is not changed. 

The APCC commented on the changes in the way serious crimes involving violence 
which mean the police work is done behind the scenes to reflect the resources 
available and the demand on the service. The public understand that the police 
service is working in challenging times but there is commitment from the PCC not to 
abandon neighbourhood policing.

The APCC agreed to attend a future meeting of the panel to give an update on the 
future of Wednesfield police station.

The panel queried the share of the Community Safety Funding detailed in Police and 
Crime Plan, that is used to support local initiatives that had allocated to 
Wolverhampton, when compared to Birmingham. 

The panel commented on the lack of visible police presence in the community and 
the negative impact on public confidence in dealing concerns about gang violence 
and public safety. The panel discussed concern that the approach to policing has 
been more proactive rather than reactive as a result of budget cuts.  The APCC 
advised the panel about the work of the violence prevention alliance which links to 
work on gang prevention. The PCC has pledged £2 million to support the work and is 
working with partner organisations to roll out the programme. The APCC commented 
the progress of the early intervention fund which is not just for Birmingham and it is 
intended to be used to scale up existing work. The APCC advised the panel of other 
funding opportunities, for example, The Ministry of Justice, to divert young people 
from crime and gang related violence. 

Page 6



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

The APCC commented that there is a national debate on removing the requirement 
to show reasonable grounds when using ‘stop and search’. The PCC has stated that 
he does not support this change because of concerns about the negative impact on 
community relations.

The panel discussed how the priorities in the Police and Crime Plan had changed in 
response to new issues arising since it was first published. The APPC advised the 
panel that the PCC produces an annual report to give an update on progress against 
the priorities detailed in the police and crime plan. The report is shared with local 
councillors and discussed at a meeting of the Police and Crime Panel. The panel 
queried if there was a different version of the annual report could be drafted that was 
for the public. The issue of reducing the level of violent crime remains a priority for 
the PCC but there is an acceptance that it will take time and there is a focus on 
finding lasting solutions.

The APCC commented on the consultation about a proposal for the transfer of the 
Police and Crime Commissioner Functions to the West Midlands Mayor in 2020. The 
APCC outlined the grave concerns of the PCC about the proposal and was 
disappointed that the public document did not include the changes that were 
suggested at the time and other options for consideration. The panel were 
encouraged to complete the online consultation form.

Mary Jacobs, Public Engagement Officer for the Police and Crime Commissioner, 
commented on work done with youth council to encourage their involvement. The 
panel were advised that a Youth Summit had been arranged in December 2018 
which will provide an opportunity to discuss issues of concern to young people.

The Chair thanked APCC for attending the meeting. The APCC confirmed that he 
would be willing to attend a future meeting. The APCC agreed to provide the 
information requested by the panel.

Resolved:
The APCC agreed to provide the information requested by the panel.

6 Draft Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy 2019-2020
Alison Shannon, Chief Accountant, introduced the draft budget and medium-term 
financial strategy report and then explained that panel comments on the proposals 
would be included in the report to Scrutiny Board and Cabinet as part of the 
consultation process. The Chief Accountant also invited the panel to comment on the 
budget consultation process itself and changes they would like to see in how the 
information was presented in the future.

The Chief Accountant explained that an update on the previously reported projected 
budget challenge of £19.5 million was published in October 2018 which led to a 
revised budget deficit of £6 million for 2019-2020. The panel were advised that the 
reduction was achieved because of work done to identify budget efficiencies, budget 
reduction and income generation opportunities.

The Chief Accountant reported that the report does not provide specific detail on 
budget efficiency proposals as they do not impact on the provision of services to the 

Page 7



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

public. There were no budget reduction and income generation proposals relating 
directly to the remit of the panel.

The panel queried the number of people who attended the public consultation events 
arranged to get views on the budget proposals. The Chief Accountant noted that 
there was a good response to the online consultation but figures relating to public 
meetings were low, the consultation was still ongoing and final figures could be 
provided at a later date.

The panel were advised that the budget consultation events were promoted using 
social media, leaflets, the Express and Star and posters near the venues. The event 
was also promoted on the Council website where the public are also invited to 
complete an online response form to share their views on the consultation process. 
This consultation is still ongoing and receives a greater response. The information 
will be used when reviewing the consultation process.

The panel discussed the effectiveness of the methods used to promote public budget 
consultation events and suggested further consideration is given to the needs of 
specific groups and how best to engage them and support their participation. The 
Chief Accountant accepted that the numbers of people attending budget consultation 
has traditionally been low. However, the response from the public to the online 
consultation has been much greater compared to public events.

The panel questioned the use on online consultation methods and emails to engage 
with members of the public and considered that it was not suitable for some 
residents.

The panel queried the lack of detail in the report about the budget efficiency
proposals where no formal public consultation is required on the basis that they have 
no impact on service provision. The Chief Accountant advised the panel that some of 
the savings relate to the release of vacant posts which are no longer considered
necessary due to changes in how services are delivered, draw down of one-off 
grants and efficiencies across non-salary budgets. The Director of Adult Services 
gave an example of a change in working arrangements at Duke Street which had no 
effect on service provision.

The panel requested a briefing paper on the implications of budget efficiency
proposals relevant to this panel and that this information is shared with the panel to 
better understand their impact on future service provision. The Chief Accountant 
agreed to provide the information to the panel. These proposals can be implemented 
without awaiting the outcome of formal budget consultation process.

Resolved: 
1. The panel comments on the draft budget and medium-term financial 

strategy 2019-20 to be included in the feedback for Scrutiny Board 
meeting on 11 December 2018.

2. The panel comments on scrutiny process of the budget to be 
considered and presented to Scrutiny Board meeting on 11 December 
2018.

7 Adults and Safer City Scrutiny - Draft Work Programme

Page 8



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED]

Minutes

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Earl Piggott- Smith, Scrutiny Officer, presented the report. Panel members were 
encouraged to submit topics for inclusion on the draft work programme.

Resolved:
The panel agreed to note the report.

The meeting closed at 20:00

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Title: Healthy 
Ageing Portfolio, 
Public Health

Date: 8.10.18

Prepared by: Dr. Ankush Mittal Job Title: Consultant in Public Health
 

Intended Audience: 

Purpose or recommendation
To brief Councillor Samuels on the Healthy Ageing Portfolio within the Public Health team.

Overview
The Healthy Ageing team consists of 1 FTE Consultant in Public Health Medicine (Dr. Ankush 
Mittal), 1 FTE Principal in Public Health (Mr. Steve Barlow), 1 FTE Senior Public Health Officer 
(Mr. Parmdip Dhillon), and 0.5 FTE Health Improvement Officer (Mrs. Anita Patel)  

The workstreams and associated performance targets of the portfolio are summarised in the table 
on the next page. 

We hold a contract of circa £200,000 for a joint TB and Infection Control service for the City (in 
partnership with Wolverhampton Clinical Commissioning Group)

Background and context 
Local context:
Public Health at CWC have had a recent restructure, moving from a team of >100 to ~30 staff 
working across 4 service areas. The new model for the directorate follows a ‘Life Course’ 
approach, appreciating the shifting challenges related to health and wellbeing with age. 

The Healthy Ageing portfolio (ages 65+) is 1 of the 4 service areas within the public health 
directorate, the others being Healthy Start (0-18 years), Healthy Life expectancy (18-65 years) and 
System Leadership (links to Royal Wolverhampton Trust and the Black Country STP)

Wider Context
Currently, public health consultants work across a range of organisations, many with a specific 
remit - e.g. control of communicable diseases (Public Health England), screening and 
immunisations (NHS England). Local Authority public health consultants have a more generalist 
function, overseeing and supporting prevention in its widest sense at a local level. 

We aim broadly to organise the efforts of society to meet essential public health needs, be they 
social, economic, physical, mental or environmental, based on local needs assessment. 
 

Internal 䠘 Partner organisation  ☐ Public  ☐ Confidential  ☐

Page 11

Agenda Item No: 5



H
ealthy Ageing

Com
m

issioning Responsibility: TB Support Services, Infection Prevention and Control Service for Care Hom
es

Strategic Leadership:O
ptim

ising the physical, m
ental, social and econom

ic w
ellbeing of over 65s; H

ealth Protection and Em
ergency 

Preparedness; Screening and Im
m

unisations; Com
m

unity O
ffer; W

olverham
pton CCG and Public Health Partnership

Business Partnering:Adult Social Care,W
olverham

pton CCG, Public Health England (PHE), Royal W
olverham

pton N
HS Trust, Housing 

and W
elfare, Transport, 3

rdSector
W

orkstream
Key aim

s and indicators 2018-2020


Screening: N

HS Health Checks, Cancer


Q
O

F indicators for chronic disease


Falls related adm
issions/fractures


Dem

entia related adm
issions


Early diagnosis of dem

entia 


%

 of adult social care users reporting as m
uch 

social contact as they w
ould like


%

 of older adults receiving w
inter fuel 

paym
ents


Develop Com

m
unity Engagem

ent Strategy


%

 of carers reporting as m
uch social contact 

as they w
ould like


Im

m
unisations:Influenza

vaccine in over 65s


Hospital adm
issions from

 care hom
es for 

influenza like illnesses


Early diagnosis ofTB and HV

Keeping people w
ell in their com

m
unity: Physicaland M

entalHealth and W
ellbeing


Lead on population approaches to m

axim
ise the coverage ofN

HS Health Checks and Cancer Screening


Support local arrangem
entsto optim

ise pathw
ays for chronic disease diagnosis and m

anagem
ent 


Supportkey partnersw

ith population approaches to falls prevention 


Lead on
population approaches to

healthy diets and active lifestyles in older age


Supportlocalsystem
s to identify and m

eetm
ental health needs in older age, and prom

ote
a dem

entia
friendly city

Keeping people w
ell in their com

m
unity:Socio-Econom

ic
H

ealth and W
ellbeing


Supportpopulation approaches to address social isolation 


Supportsafeguarding and com

m
unity safety

team
sto keep

older adults safe
in their hom

es and com
m

unities


Supportkey partners w
ith

population approaches to im
proved

housing and hom
e econom

ies for older adults


Support safeguarding
team

sprotecting
older adults from

 financial exploitation
Keeping people w

ell in their com
m

unity: Com
m

unity O
ffer


Lead on com

m
unity engagem

ent as part of the Council’s Com
m

unity O
ffer developm

ent
Keeping people w

ell in their com
m

unity: Carer Health and W
ellbeing


W

ork w
ith carer support services and w

ider partners to m
eet the health and w

ellbeing needs of carers
M

andated Function: Health Protection 


Lead on population approaches to m
axim

ise
the coverage

of key im
m

unisations, especially flu vaccine


Support and assure local em
ergency preparedness, resilience and response

system
sw

ith DPH


Lead on com
m

unity arrangem
ents for reducing the

transm
ission of infectious disease, especially

influenza, TB
and HIV


Support local air quality planning, protecting the population from

 the ill health effects of pollutants
M

andated Function: Healthcare Public Health Support for W
olverham

pton CCG


Support W
olverham

pton CCG
 w

ith
Healthcare Public Health advice

as part of our m
andated public health function


SupportBlack Country STP

and W
olverham

pton CCG to em
bed

regional and localapproachesto
frailty

across populations


Support Health and Care partnersw
ith

a system
 w

ide strategic review
 of m

ortality in W
olverham

pton


SupportHealth and Care
partners to optim

ise End of Life pathw
ays in W

olverham
pton

Page 12



Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Adults and Safer City Scrutiny Panel – Draft Work Programme

The Panel will have responsibility for scrutiny functions as they relate to: -

Older people assessment and care management, Financial support services, Libraries and 
community hubs, Independent living centre, Commissioning older people, Carers support 
and All age disabilities (disabilities).

Date of 
Meeting

Item Description Lead Report 
Author

Specific 
Questions for 
Scrutiny to 
consider

26.03.2019  Principal Social Worker 
Annual Report

 Quality Assurance 
Compliance Update 

 Transforming Care - 
Annual Report 2019

 Sufficiency of Extra Care 
Provision

 Draft work programme

Louise Haughton, 
Principal Social 
Worker

Earl Piggott-Smith

Page 13

Agenda Item No: 8



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of previous meetings (27.11.18)
	5 Healthy Ageing Portfolio - Public Health
	5 11:40 - Healthy Ageing Portfolio - Public Health

	8 Adults and Safer City Scrutiny - Draft Work Programme

